
Frequently Asked Questions

Have I got grasslands on my property?
Paddocks that you may consider as native pasture 
may also support good condition grasslands. 

Areas dominated by native grasses like Kangaroo 
Grass, Wallaby Grass, Spear Grass or Poa that have 
not been ploughed and have minimal history of 
fertiliser application, could be of high conservation 
value. 

It may be difficult for landholders to know if their 
grassland is of high conservation value. If your 
expression of interest (EOI) is high ranking, the 
BCT will assess the site condition of your proposed 
conservation area.

What is ‘grassland’?
Grasslands are a vegetation community defined by 
the suite of plants that occupy them, and by the 
structure or form of these plants. 

Grasslands are dominated by a range of perennial 
grass species and contain a diversity of forbs/
herbs (or non-woody plants) when in a good 
condition state. A grassland community is often 
treeless, although a range of tree species may 
occur in low densities. 

Seasonally wet areas within a site may also contain 
a range of wetland plant species, including rushes, 
sedges and a variety of wetland specialist forbs. 

Grasslands within the BCT conservation tender in 
the Snowy Monaro Local Government Area (LGA) 
are found on broad sweeping plains with poor 
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drainage and cold air inversions that promote 
frosts which inhibit tree growth. These grasslands 
can occur on all topographical locations, including 
upper-slopes, crests and plateaus on basalt 
landscapes, and in frost hollows in areas otherwise 
dominated by woodlands or forests. The grasslands 
community occurs in a landscape mosaic with 
grassy woodland communities and freshwater 
wetlands. 

Why is the conservation tender in the Snowy 
Monaro LGA and why is it focussed on 
grasslands?
The NSW Biodiversity Conservation Investment 
Strategy (BCIS) guides the BCT investment. The 
Investment Strategy identifies high conservation 
value grasslands as an investment priority because 
they are one of the least protected ecosystems in 
NSW, with the grasslands of the Cooma-Monaro 
region referenced as a specific example.  

The BCT recognises that the distribution of high 
conservation value grassland is poorly understood, 
and that these valued areas are likely to occur 
beyond the Priority Investment Areas mapped in 
the BCIS. The Snowy Monaro LGA conservation 
tender investment area reflects this. 

Grasslands occur in many parts of the state but this 
tender has been geographically limited to enable 
effective and efficient delivery. 

The BCT will be announcing future conservation 
tenders in areas of NSW which are identified in the 
BCIS as priority areas. For more information view 
our website www.bct.nsw.gov.au

Does a Conservation Agreement mean I 
would be ‘locking up’ country that I can no 
longer use for agriculture? 
Entering into a Conservation Agreement with the 
BCT does not ‘lock up’ land. The BCT recognises 
that active management of conservation areas 
is required to manage threats such as pests and 
weeds.

Entering into a Conservation Agreement CA is a 
voluntary decision by the you, the landholder. 

Landholders who are successful in the program 
will receive ongoing income for managing the 
land for conservation outcomes. In some cases, 
the Conservation Agreement may permit strategic 
grazing where this practice provides good 
biodiversity outcomes. Successful landholders will 

be provided with an annual income, regardless of 
the seasonal conditions or commodity prices.

Will my pests and weeds get out of control in 
the Conservation Area?
Weeds and pests, for example African 
Lovegrass and rabbits; are just as much a threat 
to biodiversity as they are to agriculture. In 
preparation of your bid for the tender, you are 
encouraged to consider how much it will cost 
to manage pests and weeds in the proposed 
Conservation Area.  Management of pests and 
weeds may involve engaging contractors, hiring 
equipment and/or purchasing chemicals. 

African Lovegrass is already a significant problem 
for many landholders within the Snowy Monaro 
LGA. Participation in the BCT conservation 
tender program offers you the opportunity to 
access ongoing assistance for African Lovegrass 
management. 

My neighbour is worried that a Conservation 
Area will harbour weeds and pests, and 
become a fire hazard. 
The Biodiversity Conservation Trust recognises that 
conservation areas require ongoing management. 
Landholders participating in the Tender prepare a 
bid that considers costs for managing weeds, pests 
and biomass levels. 

Successful bidders enter into a Conservation 
Agreement within ongoing management payments. 
The agreement is registered on the title of the land 
and binding on current and future owners. This 
means that current and future owners will receive 
ongoing conservation management payments to 
manage threats such as pests and weeds. 

Will a Conservation Agreement on title 
negatively impact land value and reduce 
interest and saleability of my asset?
The potential impact of a Conservation Agreement 
on land value depends on a number of factors.

Property buyers may see a covenant as something 
of interest and value, particularly if they are 
interested in sustainable production and bushland 
amenity. Unlike many previous conservation 
programs, the BCT Conservation Management 
Program provides a guaranteed annual income 
source that may be considered as an asset at 
point-of-sale.
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However, Conservation Agreements do provide 
some restrictions on land use activities that may 
impact the value of the property and/or change 
the type of person interested in purchasing your 
property. 

The BCT encourages landholders to carefully 
consider the design of their Conservation Area 
and their decision to enter into a Conservation 
Agreement, including seeking independent legal 
and financial advice. 

Will I still have to pay LLS and Local Council 
rates?
Yes. While the BCT does deliver some programs 
that provide opportunity for local government rate 
relief the tenders operating under our Conservation 
Management Program do not. Landholders may 
consider costs, such as rates, in developing their 
bid for the tender. 

Does the Conservation Agreement with the 
Trust have to run with the land?
Yes. Placing the agreement on title means that 
the agreed outcomes are secure for the term of 
the agreement - even if the land is sold. This is 
important to the BCT as we are concerned with 
securing long-term conservation outcomes. 

The Conservation Tender offers landholders the 
option of entering an agreement for a fixed term 
(minimum 15 years) through to an in-perpetuity 
agreement. To reflect the BCTs value of long 
term conservation outcomes, bids that propose 
an in-perpetuity Conservation Agreement will be 
valued more highly by the Conservation Tender 
assessment metric tool.

I am missing out on this tender. Is that fair?
The Biodiversity Conservation Trust currently 
delivers a range of programs across the state, 
informed by the priorities set by the NSW 
Government’s BCIS. The BCT has been established 
with a focus on investing funds on private land 
where it will have the greatest conservation 
benefit. This means that all areas of native 
vegetation are not treated equally and some areas 
will be a higher priority for investment than others. 

Further opportunities may arise in the future for 
landholders who are not within the current tender 
area, or do not currently have eligible vegetation 
types. Please refer to the BCTs fact sheet on other 

program options that may be of interest to you on 
our website.

What do I need to do to participate?
If you are interested in participating you will need 
to consider what parts of your property would 
be eligible for the tender and what parts of your 
property you would be willing to manage for 
biodiversity outcomes. You will need to submit an 
EOI form within the EOI period for the tender. You 
will need to identify the area you are proposing 
to manage as a conservation area will meet the 
minimum size requirement. You will need to answer 
some questions on the land management history of 
the proposed tender site. 

EOIs will be prioritised with highest ranking 
sites prioritised for site assessments. If your EOI 
progresses to the site assessment stage you will be 
provided with materials to read in preparation for a 
visit from a BCT officer. 

Will all sites be visited and funded?
Unfortunately, not all sites can receive a site 
assessment. Sites will be prioritised for assessment 
on the basis of information provided by the 
landholder at the EOI stage and data available 
to the BCT on grassland distribution across the 
tender area. The largest grassland sites, with the 
least exposure to ploughing, fertilizer and over-
sowing are most likely to receive a site visit and 
field assessment.  

Receiving a site assessment is not a guarantee that 
you will receive funding. Tenders are a competitive 
process, aimed at investing in best value for 
money sites. The Tender Guide will provide further 
information about the assessment of sites.

The NSW BCT reserves the right to seek 
clarification or additional information from 
landowners about any information included in their 
bid, to inform the bid assessment process. The 
BCT further reserves the right to reject bids which 
set out management payments that would clearly 
not support implementation of the conservation 
management plan and actions. 

I have grasslands that I’m not allowed to 
clear – does that mean I will get funding?
Not necessarily. The BCT is focussed on investing 
in good value for money proposals to protect and 
manage the highest conservation value grasslands. 
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As this tender is a competitive process it is the 
landholders who offer the largest area of grassland, 
of the highest quality and for the best price that 
are most likely to be successful. 

We are aware that there is a lot of discussion 
about regulation of grassland areas. The BCT is 
not involved in regulation and landholders should 
direct any questions on this issue to the Local Land 
Services office in Cooma. 

What is the conservation tender process? 
Tenders will be conducted in a two-stage process. 
Landholders will initially be invited to express 
their interest and eligible landholders with the 
highest-ranking sites will be contacted by the BCT 
to arrange a site assessment. You can refer to the 
‘eligibility’ information on our website from 20 
August, which will assist you to decide if you are 
eligible, or contact the BCT on 1300 992 688. 

If your site is eligible, the BCT will work with you 
to prepare a conservation management plan to 
enable participation in the tender.  

What does an eligible site look like?
To be eligible to participate in the Monaro 
grassland conservation tender, a site needs to: 

 | be located within the Conservation Tender area

 | have a minimum of 10 hectares of grassland 
proposed to be conserved and managed for 
biodiversity 

 | be in moderate to good condition as 
determined by BCT field staff during the site 
assessment applying vegetation benchmark 
criteria    

Any sites which do not meet eligibility 
requirements will not progress further in the tender 
process. Any significant areas of a proposed site in 
poor ecological condition will be excluded.  

Are there any other eligibility criteria?
Yes, there are other eligibility criteria.

 | Joint bids from different landholders will not 
be accepted. Bids are to be made by a unique 
legal entity with legal rights to enter into the 
Conservation Agreement with the Biodiversity 
Conservation Trust. 

 | Proposed sites must not be covered by an 
existing binding agreement (e.g. contract or 

legal agreement), or be receiving funding for 
activities similar to or in conflict with activities 
required under the conservation management 
plan, or the conservation management 
activities, proposed under a BCT Conservation 
Agreement.

 | The exception to this rule are sites that 
have existing in-perpetuity Conservation 
Agreements (National Parks and Wildlife Act 
1974), Trust Agreements (Nature Conservation 
Trust Act 2001) and Registered Property 
Agreements (Native Vegetation Conservation 
Act 1997). 

 | Eligible sites with existing in-perpetuity 
agreements will not be permitted to bid for 
capital costs or active management actions 
that have already been committed to or funded 
under the existing agreements. 

Is public land eligible?
Certain public owned and managed lands  will be 
eligible for the Monaro grassland conservation 
tender. 

Public protected areas  and Travelling Stock 
Reserves (TSR) are not eligible.

For eligible publicly owned and managed lands, 
the BCT will:

 | only consider EOIs for in-perpetuity 
agreements over eligible publicly owned and 
managed land

 | not fund activities that are the core business  of 
the public land manager.

The BCT reserves the right to limit the number 
of successful bids over public land, and/or limit 
the sum of investment funds for agreements over 
public lands

The BCT does not intend that a private land 
agreement would restrict or invalidate an 
Aboriginal Land Rights claim. 

Landholders/Owners who are subject of an 
Aboriginal Land Rights claim, will be required to 
consult with the claimant about their intention to 
enter into a private land conservation agreement 
with the BCT, and provide evidence to the BCT that 
such consultation has occurred.

Local Government Authorities are also encouraged 
to investigate Biodiversity Stewardship Agreements 
options for land they own and manage.
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What is the level of investment in the 
conservation tender? 
The NSW Government has committed $61.4 million 
across the BCT’s programs for 2018-19 to deliver 
major benefits to the environment and support 
landholders to carry out important conservation 
management on their properties. Of this funding, 
$46.6 million will be allocated to the BCT’s 
Conservation Tenders in 2018-19, including the 
Snowy Monaro LGA region.

Who is the BCT?
The NSW Government established the BCT as 
part of its environmental reforms in mid-2017. 
The BCT protects and enhances biodiversity by 
promoting conservation measures on private land 
and offering a biodiversity offsetting service. We 
encourage long-term conservation by supporting 
landholders in their efforts to manage and enhance 
biodiversity values on their land. The government 
has committed $240 million over four years and 
a further $70 million ongoing to our private land 
conservation program.


